
January 12, 2022

NOTICE: Public meetings will be held electronically and in-person.  To access and 

participate in meetings remotely, please use the Zoom information listed below.

Call To Order

Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

01-12-22 AGENDA.PDF

Approval Of Minutes 12/29/21,12/30/21, 01/03/22

JANUARY MEETING 2022.PDF
12-29-21 MINUTES.PDF
12-30-21 MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment 01/12/22

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 1.12.22.PDF

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

Consideration Of First Reading Of Proposed Ordinance Regarding Ditch Mowing

DITCH MOWING REVISED FIRST READING HARDIN COUNTY 
ORDINANCE.PDF

Motion To Waive Second Reading Of Proposed Ordinance Regarding Ditch Mowing

Set Final Reading Of Proposed Ditch Mowing Ordinance

Precinct Population Certification

PRECINCT POPULATION CERTIFICATION.PDF

Consideration Of First Reading - Ordinance No. 30 Amended - Redistricting And 
Reprecincting

ORDINANCE NO. 30 AMENDED 2022.PDF

Motion To Waive Second Reading Of Ordinance No. 30 Amended

Set Final Consideration Of Ordinance 30 - Amended

Consider Resolution Approving Revenue Purpose Statement - Iowa Falls Community School 
District

IF SCHOOL DISTRICT RESOLUTION 01-06-21.PDF

Approval Of MHDS Advisory Board Resignation And Appointment Of Replacement

Wellmark Rate Increase

Auditor's Monthly Report

01-10-22 AUDITOR REPORT.PDF

Recorder's Report

RECORDERS MONTHLY REPORT.PDF

Sheriff's Monthly Report

SHERIFF DECEMBER MONTHLY REPORT.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage

Courthouse Large Conference Room

Discussion And Possible Action On Compensation Board Recommendations

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

Documents:

8.

9.

10.

Documents:

11.

Documents:

12.

13.

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

17.

Documents:

18.

Documents:

19.

Documents:

20.

21.

22. 9:30 A.M.

23. 1:15 P.M.



January 12, 2022

NOTICE: Public meetings will be held electronically and in-person.  To access and 

participate in meetings remotely, please use the Zoom information listed below.

Call To Order

Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

01-12-22 AGENDA.PDF

Approval Of Minutes 12/29/21,12/30/21, 01/03/22

JANUARY MEETING 2022.PDF
12-29-21 MINUTES.PDF
12-30-21 MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment 01/12/22

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 1.12.22.PDF

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

Consideration Of First Reading Of Proposed Ordinance Regarding Ditch Mowing

DITCH MOWING REVISED FIRST READING HARDIN COUNTY 
ORDINANCE.PDF

Motion To Waive Second Reading Of Proposed Ordinance Regarding Ditch Mowing

Set Final Reading Of Proposed Ditch Mowing Ordinance

Precinct Population Certification

PRECINCT POPULATION CERTIFICATION.PDF

Consideration Of First Reading - Ordinance No. 30 Amended - Redistricting And 
Reprecincting

ORDINANCE NO. 30 AMENDED 2022.PDF

Motion To Waive Second Reading Of Ordinance No. 30 Amended

Set Final Consideration Of Ordinance 30 - Amended

Consider Resolution Approving Revenue Purpose Statement - Iowa Falls Community School 
District

IF SCHOOL DISTRICT RESOLUTION 01-06-21.PDF

Approval Of MHDS Advisory Board Resignation And Appointment Of Replacement

Wellmark Rate Increase

Auditor's Monthly Report

01-10-22 AUDITOR REPORT.PDF

Recorder's Report

RECORDERS MONTHLY REPORT.PDF

Sheriff's Monthly Report

SHERIFF DECEMBER MONTHLY REPORT.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage

Courthouse Large Conference Room

Discussion And Possible Action On Compensation Board Recommendations

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

Documents:

8.

9.

10.

Documents:

11.

Documents:

12.

13.

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

17.

Documents:

18.

Documents:

19.

Documents:

20.

21.

22. 9:30 A.M.

23. 1:15 P.M.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/1fc44bef-3df6-47c2-9d6b-347255da64cd


1215 EDGINGTON AVE., SUITE 1
ELDORA, IA 50627

 (641) 939-8219
SUPERVISORS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

LANCE A. GRANZOW
SUPERVISOR

LGRANZOW@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

BJ HOFFMAN

CHAIR

BHOFFMAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

              RENEE MCCLELLAN
                         SUPERVISOR

RMCCLELLAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

January 12, 2022

NOTICE: Public meetings will be held electronically and in-person.  To access and
participate in meetings remotely, please use the Zoom information listed below.

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022
9:00 A.M. Call to Order, Courthouse Large Conference Room

            Online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88530378243
            By Phone: 1-312-626-6799
            Meeting ID: 885 3037 8243

Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Agenda
Approval of Minutes – 12/29/21, 12/30/21,01/03/22
Approval of Claims for Payment –
Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department
Consideration of First Reading of Proposed Ordinance regarding Ditch 
Mowing 
Motion to Waive Second Reading of Proposed Ordinance regarding Ditch 
Mowing 
Set Final Reading/Consideration – Ditch Mowing Ordinance
Precinct Population Certification
Consideration of First Reading– Ordinance No. 30 Amended – 
Redistricting and Reprecincting
Motion to Wave Second Reading of Ordinance No. 30 Amended
Set Final Consideration of Ordinance No. 30 - Amended
Consider Resolution Approving Revenue Purpose Statement – Iowa Falls  
Community School District
Approval of Resignation of Robin England, MHDS Advisory Board
Appoint Cheri Manning to complete Robin England’s term ending 
12/31/23
Wellmark Rate Increase
Auditor’s Monthly Report
Recorder’s Report
Sheriff’s Monthly Report
Other Business
Adjournment/Recess

9:30 A.M. Drainage, Courthouse Large Conference Room
     Online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007
     By Phone: 1-312-626-6799
     Meeting ID: 820 7567 2007

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88530378243
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007


1215 EDGINGTON AVE., SUITE 1
ELDORA, IA 50627

 (641) 939-8219
SUPERVISORS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

LANCE A. GRANZOW
SUPERVISOR

LGRANZOW@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

BJ HOFFMAN

CHAIR

BHOFFMAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

              RENEE MCCLELLAN
                         SUPERVISOR

RMCCLELLAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

Page 2

9:30 A.M.. Discussion & possible action on Compensation Board Recommendations,
Courthouse, Small Conference Room

            Online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88530378243
            By Phone: 1-312-626-6799
            Meeting ID: 885 3037 8243

/s/ Jolene Pieters
Jolene Pieters, Hardin County Auditor

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88530378243


HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

MONDAY, JANUARY 3, 2022 - 9:00 A.M.
COURTHOUSE LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM

The 2022 Organizational Meeting of the Hardin County Board of Supervisors was called to order
by Jolene Pieters, Auditor.  Present: Lance Granzow, Renee McClellan, BJ Hoffman, Jolene
Pieters, Michael Pearce Taylor Roll, Machel Eichmeier, Dave McDaniel, Matt Jones, Darrell
Meyer. Attending via Zoom: Wes Wiese, Connie Mesch, Lori Kadner, Julie Duhn, and Donna
Juber.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

The floor was opened for nominations for Chair of the Board for calendar year 2022. It was
moved by Renee McClellan, seconded by Lance Granzow to appoint BJ Hoffman as the 2022
Chair.  No other nominations were received.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” McClellan, Granzow, and
Hoffman abstained.  “Nays” None.  Motion carried.

It was then moved by McClellan, seconded by Hoffman appointing Lance Granzow as the 2022
Vice-Chair.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the agenda as posted.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded that Board member appointments to various boards from
2021 carry over to 2022, with the exception of the Northeast Iowa Response Group Board
alternate.  Motion carried.

Boards and County representatives are as follows:

Emergency Management  McClellan
Emergency Management Alternate  Granzow
Hardin Co. Solid Waste Commission  Granzow
Hardin Co. Solid Waste Commission  Alternate  Hoffman
Hardin County EMS Council  Hoffman
Hardin County EMS Council Alternate  McClellan
Iowa Workforce Board  Granzow
Mid-Iowa Community Action  McClellan
Mid-Iowa Community Action Alternate  Hoffman
Region Six Planning Commission  Granzow
Region Six Planning Commission Alternate  Hoffman
Second Judicial District Bd. of Directors  McClellan
Second Judicial District Alternate  Hoffman
Heartland Insurance Risk Pool Board  Granzow
Heartland Insurance Risk Pool Alternate  Jolene Pieters
Juvenile Detention Center Commission  Granzow
Juvenile Detention Center Alternate  McClellan
Northeast Iowa Response Group Board  Hoffman
Northeast Iowa Response Group Bd. Alternate  Thomas Craighton & Lyle Jeske
Hardin County Firemen’s Association  Hoffman
Hardin Co. Firemen’s Assoc. Alternate  Granzow
E-911 Board Representative  McClellan
E-911 Board Alternate  Granzow
Board of Health         McClellan
Board of Health Alternate  Granzow
Decategorization Board  McClellan
Decategorization Board Alternate  Granzow
Senior Issues  Hoffman
Senior Issues Alternate  McClellan
Greenbelt Home Care  Hoffman
Greenbelt Home Care Alternate  Granzow
Central Iowa Community Services Board  Hoffman



Central Iowa Comm. Services Board Alternate  Granzow
Iowa River Trail - Hardin Commission  McClellan
Iowa River Trail - Hardin Commission Alternate  Granzow

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded authorizing attendance by County employees to meetings
set up by the Iowa State Association of Counties (ISAC) for the year 2022, and that expenses of
those attending be paid by the County.  The Courthouse shall remain open on the day(s) of the
meetings.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to close the Courthouse on the following days in 2022 for
holidays.  Motion carried.

Martin Luther King Jr. Day January 17, 2022
Memorial Day May 30, 2022
Independence Day July 4, 2022
Labor Day September 5, 2022
Veterans Day November 11, 2022
Thanksgiving November 24 & 25, 2022
Christmas December 26 & 27, 2022
New Year’s Day January 2, 2023

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the following newspapers as legal newspapers
for Hardin County for 2022:  Times-Citizen, Ackley World Journal, and Herald Ledger.  Motion
carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the appointment of Trent Lambert to the
County Conservation Board.  This is a five-year term commencing January 1, 2022.  Motion
carried.

Hoffman asked to table the appointment of the ex-officio member to the County Conservation
Board.  This is a one-year term commencing January 1, 2022 and the appointments to the County
Board of Health.  These are three-year terms commencing January 1, 2022.  McClellan moved,
Granzow seconded. Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the appointments of Jim Johnson, Mary
Schwarck, and Tim Rogers to the MH/DS Advisory Board. These are three-year terms
commencing January 1, 2022.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to table the appointment to fill a vacancy on the MH/DS
Advisory Board. This is for the remainder of the term ending December 31, 2022.  Motion
carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the appointment of Ben Speck to the Zoning
Adjustment Board.  This is a five-year term commencing January 1, 2022.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to appoint the following individuals as members of the
Hardin County Board of Condemnation for a term of one year commencing January 1, 2022.
Granzow stated that if any of these members would like to be removed from this board or of
anyone would like to be on this board to fill the vacancies, they should contact the Board of
Supervisors. Motion carried.

FARMERS PROPERTY OWNERS
Everett Harms Steve Mannetter
Bill Lawless Harold J. Muller
Steve Perry Scott Earl Williams
Don Hauser Kenneth Butt
Neil Hadley Chris Renihan
John Kix Jeremiah Andrews
____________________ ____________________



REAL ESTATE BUSINESS PEOPLE
Ed Bear John Zoske
Brad Fjelland Rosanne Primus
Mike Nissly Greg Salvo
Carl Stevens Carla Gunderson
Gene Steelman Troy McDonald
Marilyn Reinertson Brent Perry
Leon Herndon ____________________

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the appointment of Kathy Houck to the
Pioneer Cemetery Commission.  This is a three-year term commencing January 1, 2022.  Motion
carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the appointment of Paul Martin as Weed
Commissioner.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the appointment of Eric Nielsen to the Prairie
Rivers of Iowa Resource Conservation and Development Board.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to table the appointment of a Concord Township Trustee
for the remainder of a term ending December 31, 2024.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded setting Wednesdays at 9:00 a.m. for the 2022 Board of
Supervisors regular meetings.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the Medical Examiner Investigator Services
Agreements with Thomas Craighton, Eric Eugenio, and Marla Williams effective January 1,
2022 through January 1, 2023 at $300.00 per case.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded that Resolution No. 2022-01, Resolution Naming
Depositories as Per Iowa Code Section 12C, be adopted.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow,
McClellan, and Hoffman.  “Nays” None.  Motion carried. Resolution No. 2022-01 is hereby
adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION NO.  2022-01
RESOLUTION NAMING DEPOSITORIES AS PER IOWA CODE SECTION 12C

BE IT RESOLVED, that the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS of HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA,
approves the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the HARDIN COUNTY
funds in conformance with all applicable provisions of Iowa Code Chapter 12C.

The HARDIN COUNTY OFFICERS are hereby authorized to deposit the Hardin County funds
in amounts not to exceed the maximum approved for each respective financial institution as set
out below.

Depository Name Location of Home
Office

Maximum Balance in
effect under prior

Resolution

Maximum Balance in 
effect under this 

Resolution
Treasurer

Hardin County Savings Bank
Great Western Bank – Eldora
Green Belt Bank & Trust
Iowa Falls State Bank
GNB Bank - Ackley
Security State Bank
United Bank & Trust – Alden
Security State Bank
GNB – Iowa Falls
Green Belt Bank & Trust – Eldora
Wells Fargo Bank – (IPAIT)
Peoples Savings Bank - Cleves

Eldora
Marshalltown

Iowa Falls
Iowa Falls

Grundy Center
Hubbard
Sheffield
Radcliffe

Grundy Center
Iowa Falls

Des Moines
Wellsburg

20,000,000
15,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

15,000,000
15,000,000

500,000

20,000,000
15,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

15,000,000
15,000,000

500,000
Recorder

Hardin County Savings Bank Eldora 500,000 500,000
Sheriff



Great Western Bank – Eldora
Hardin County Savings Bank –
   Commissary
   Inmate Commissary
Hardin County Savings Bank –
   Forfeiture
   Federal Forfeiture
Security State Bank - DARE

Marshalltown
Eldora

Eldora

Hubbard

500,000

100,000
100,000

100,000
100,000
2,000

500,000

100,000
100,000

100,000
100,000
2,000

Hardin County Public
Employees

Health Plan Trust
Hardin County Savings Bank
Green Belt Bank & Trust

Eldora
Iowa Falls

500,000
500,000

1,000,000
500,000

Hardin County Flexible 
Benefits

Hardin County Savings Bank Eldora 50,000 50,000

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed and
adopted this 3rd day of January, 2022.

_____________
BJ Hoffman, Chair
Hardin County Board of Supervisors

CERTIFICATION.  I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution
of the HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS adopted at a meeting of said public
body, duly called and held on the 3rd day of January, 2022, a quorum being present, as said
resolution remains of record in the minutes of said meeting, and it is now in full force and effect.

Dated this 3rd day of January, 2022.

/s/ Jolene Pieters
Jolene Pieters
Hardin County Auditor

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the Investment Policy.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded that the following Resolution No. 2022-02, Embargo
Resolution, be adopted.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan, and Hoffman.  “Nays”
None. Motion carried. Resolution No. 2022-02 is hereby adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION #2022-02
Hardin County Embargo Resolution

WHEREAS: The Board of Supervisors is empowered under authority of Section 321.236(8),
321.255 and 321.471 to 321.473 of the Code of Iowa to prohibit the operation of vehicles upon
Secondary Roads or to impose restrictions as to weight of vehicles to be operated upon said
secondary roads, except farm tractors as defined in Section 321.1, Subsection 7, for a total period
not to exceed ninety days in any one calendar year, whenever any said highway by reason of
deterioration, rain, snow or other climatic conditions will be seriously damaged or destroyed
unless the use of vehicles thereon is prohibited or the permissible weights thereof reduced, and

WHEREAS: Severe weather conditions have caused certain secondary roads to be incapable of
bearing the customary traffic thereon without undue damages,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors that the
County Engineer be authorized to order any of the Secondary Roads closed to vehicles in excess
of five (5) tons per axle, wherever he deems it necessary and for the period of time deemed
expedient (not to exceed 90 days), by erecting signs in accordance with Section 321.472.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Engineer may grant permits of exemption upon
a showing that there is a need to move to market farm produce of a type subject to rapid spoilage
or loss of value or to move any farm feeds or fuel for home heating purposes.

Passed and approved this 3rd day of January, 2022.



_____________
BJ Hoffman, Chair
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: 

/s/ Jolene Pieters
Jolene Pieters
Hardin County Auditor

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded that the following Resolution No. 2022-03, Resolution for
Temporary Road Closures, be adopted.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan, and
Hoffman.  “Nays” None.  Motion carried. Resolution No. 2022-03 is hereby adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION FOR TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURES
Hardin County Resolution No. 2022-03

WHEREAS, Section 306.41 of the Code of Iowa provides that:

“The agency having jurisdiction and control over any highway in the state, or the chief engineer
of said agency when delegated by such agency, may temporarily close sections of a highway by
formal resolution entered upon the minutes of such agency when reasonably necessary because
of construction, reconstruction, maintenance or natural disaster and shall cause to be erected
“road closed” signs and partial or total barricades in the roadway at each end of the closed
highway section and on the closed highway where that highway is intersected by other highways
if such intersection remains open. Any numbered road closed for over forty-eight hours shall
have a designated detour route. The agency having jurisdiction over a section of highway closed
in accordance with the provisions of this section, or the persons or contractors employed to carry
out the construction, reconstruction, or maintenance of the closed section of highway, shall not
be liable for any damages to any vehicle that enters the closed section of highway or the contents
of such vehicle or for any injuries to any person that enters the closed section of highway, unless
the damages are caused by gross negligence of the agency or contractor.

Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit or deny any person from gaining lawful access to
the person’s property or residence, nor shall it change or limit liability to such persons.”

NOW,   THEREFORE   BE   IT   RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors that the
County Engineer is hereby authorized through December 31, 2022, to temporarily close Hardin
County Secondary Roads as necessary and allowed by law with the actual dates of closure to be
determined by the County Engineer as follows:

1. For   Construction   and   Reconstruction:  Any project as described in the approved
County Secondary Road Construction Program and any approved supplements
thereto.

2. For   Emergency   Closure   for   Maintenance   and   Natural   Disaster   Purposes:  Any route
deemed necessary by the County Engineer.

Passed and adopted this 3rd day of January, 2022.

_____________
BJ Hoffman, Chairperson
County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: /s/ Jolene Pieters 1/3/2022
Jolene Pieters Date
Hardin County Auditor



Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the change of status for the Sheriff’s
Department. Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the claims of payment. Motion carried.

Utility Permits:  None.

Secondary Roads Department:  Engineer Taylor Roll gave an update on equipment.

The second reading of the Ordinance regarding ditch mowing in rights-of-way. County Attorney
Meyer discussed the wording of the ordinance. Motion failed to approve the second reading of
the ditch mowing rights-of-way ordinance. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve to
change the wording of the ordinance and have a first reading of the ordinance on the agenda for
the next meeting.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the second reading of the Ordinance
Regulating Livestock at Large and waive the third and final reading of the Ordinance Regulating
Livestock at Large. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan, and Hoffman.  “Nays” None.
Motion carried. Ordinance 2022-49 is hereby adopted as follows:

HARDIN COUNTY
ORDINANCE 2022-49

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING LIVESTOCK AT LARGE

       Purpose A regulation relating to livestock running at large, establishing consequences for
livestock and owner, and providing reasonable rights of notice and hearing before the imposition
of penalties.
           The Hardin County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the following ordinance to wit:

1.1 Definitions

1.1 (01) “Livestock” means an animal belonging to the bovine, caprine, equine, ovine, or
porcine species; ostriches, rheas, or emus; farm deer or poultry. 

1.1 (02) “At Large” means off the premises of the owner and not under the control of a
competent person, restrained within a trailer, or housed in a veterinary hospital or kennel.

1.1 (03) “Owner” means the person who holds title to livestock or who is primarily responsible
for the care and feeding of the livestock as provided by the titleholder.

 2.1 Violations

2.1 (01) At Large Prohibited. It is unlawful for livestock to run at large within Hardin County.

2.1 (02) Damage or Interference. It is unlawful for livestock to unlawfully pass upon the
premises of another thereby causing damage to, or interference with the premises, property or
livestock of another. 

3.1 Penalties

3.1 (01) After receiving two prior warnings of violations of this Ordinance from any law
enforcement official, any owner violating this Ordinance or any amendment or supplement
thereto, may be found guilty of a simple misdemeanor which is punishable by a fine of not more
than six hundred twenty-five dollars ($625) or by imprisonment of not more than thirty (30)
days. 

3.1 (02) After receiving two prior warnings of violations of this Ordinance from any law
enforcement official, the owner may, in the alternative, be found guilty of a county infraction
punishable by a civil penalty of not more than seven hundred and fifty dollars ($750), of if there
has been a prior conviction for a violation of this Ordinance, then by a civil penalty not to exceed
one thousand dollars ($1,000).



3.1 (03) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prevent a landowner or local authority
from taking custody of livestock as provided by Chapter 169C of the Iowa Code.

 4.1 Applicability

4.1 (01) Provisions contained herein are applicable to all unincorporated areas of Hardin
County. 

5.1 Severability of Provisions

5.1 (01) If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be held invalid, the
invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining
provisions of this ordinance.

 6.1 Regulation Effective Upon Publication

6.1 (01) This ordinance being deemed essential and imperative for the preservation of the public
health, shall be in force and effect from and after its passage and publication as provided by law.

1st reading: 12/29/21
       2nd reading: 01/03/22

    3rd reading: Waived

Passed and approved this _____ day of __________, 2022.

HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

________________________ Attest: ________________________
BJ Hoffman, Chair Jolene Pieters, Auditor

________________________
Renee McClellan

   ________________________
   Lance Granzow

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the Title VI Non-Discrimination  Agreement
2022. Motion carried.

Other Business: McClelland moved, Granzow seconded to have the Auditor publish Ordinance
2022-____, Regulating Livestock at Large. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan, and
Hoffman.  “Nays” None.  Ordinance 2022-____ will become effective when published.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried.

_____________ /s/ Jolene Pieters
BJ Hoffman, Chair             Jolene Pieters
Board of Supervisors Hardin County Auditor



HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES – DECEMBER 29, 2021

WEDNESDAY  -  12:00 P.M.
COURTHOUSE LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM

Vice Chair Renee McClellan called the meeting to order. Also present were Supervisor Lance 
Granzow, Michael Pearce, Taylor Roll, Joe Donald, Darrel Meyer, Machel Eichmeier, Thomas 
Craighton, Dave McDaniel, Jolene Pieters, West Henry Ioerger and George Ioerger. Attending 
via Zoom: Lori Kadner, JD Holmes, Rocky Reents, Jim Sweeney, Donna Juber, Matt Rezab, 
Curt Groen, Julie Duhn and Lisa Lawler.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the minutes of November 29, 2021 and 
December 22, 2021. Motion carried

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the December 29, 2021 claims for payment. 
Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve Utility Permit, UT-21-018 for Alliant Energy. 
Motion carried.

At 12:02 P.M. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to open the Public Hearing on Road 
Vacation – G Avenue. Motion carried.

Taylor Roll gave a summary of vacation of G Avenue. No public comments.

At 12:04 P.M. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to close the Public Hearing on Road 
Vacation – G Avenue. Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve Resolution No. 2021-51 to vacate a portion of 
G Avenue. Motion carried. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan. “Nays”: None. Motion 
carried.

At 12:06 the first reading of  the Ordinance relating to ditch mowing on Hardin County rights-of-
way was completed. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve first reading of Ordinance 
relating to ditch mowing on Hardin County rights-of-way. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, 
McClellan. “Nays”: None. Motion carried. Second reading of the Ordinance will be put on the 
next Supervisors’ meeting agenda.

The first reading of the Ordinance regulating livestock at large was completed. Granzow moved, 
McClellan seconded to approve the first reading of Ordinance regulating livestock at large. Roll 
Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan. “Nays” None. Motion carried. The second reading of 
the Ordinance will be put on the next Supervisors’ meeting agenda.



Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to cancel the Board of Supervisors’ meeting on January 5,
2022. Motion carried.

No other business.

At 12:09 P.M., Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn. Motion carried.

At 12:30 P.M. Meeting with Beth Miller, Auditor from Bowman & Miller, PC for an Exit 
Conference regarding Hardin County’s yearly audit. Those present were Lance Granzow, Renee 
McClellan, Machel Eichmeier, Jolene Pieters and Michael Pearce. Attending via Zoom: Julie 
Duhn and Marian Kuper.

Beth discussed the results of the Audit including the Internal Control comments regarding 
Drainage Reconciliation and Statutory Compliance in all other areas.

Beth also stated that with the ARPA Federal dollars given to Hardin County, there will be 
increased audits in the upcoming fiscal years and reports that are required which those expenses 
and those will need to be budgeted for.

At 1:08 P.M. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded. Motion carried.



HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES – DECEMBER 30, 2021

THURSDAY  -  9:00 A.M.
COURTHOUSE LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM

Vice Chairperson Renee McClellan called the meeting to order. Also present were Supervisor 
Lance Granzow, Machel Eichmeier, Jolene Pieters and Michael Pearce. Attending via Zoom: 
Wes Wiese and Carey Calloway.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried.

At 9:02 A.M. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to open the Public Hearing – FY 2021/2022 
Budget Amendment. Motion carried

The list of amendments and reasons for those amendments were read by Granzow.

At 9:05 A.M. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to close the Public Hearing. Roll Call Vote: 
“Ayes” Granzow, McClellan. “Nays” None. 

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adopt FY 2021/2022 budget amendment. Roll Call 
Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan. “Nays” None.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adopt the FY 2021/2022 Appropriations Resolution 
Amendment. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan. “Nays” None.

WHEREUPON Board Member Granzow moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION AMENDMENT

RESOLUTION No. 2021 – 55

On December 20, 2021, a budget hearing for an amendment was held. The budget amendment 
was approved and the following appropriation amendments shall be made as deemed necessary:

Office or Department Amended Appropriation Amount
Veteran’s Affairs + $    7,000
Conservation + $  55,000
Secondary Roads + $250,000
Tech Services (Housing Grant) + $     7,100
Economic Development + $     3,500
Information Technology             + $   45,402

Motion as seconded by Board Member McClellan and after due consideration thereof, the roll 
was called and the following Board Members voted:



AYES: Granzow, McClellan
NAYS: None
ABSENT: Hoffman
ABSTAIN: None

Whereupon, the Vice-Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed 
and adopted this 30th day of December, 2021

At 9:06 A.M. Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn. Motion carried.

/s/ Renee McClellan
Renee McClellan, Vice-Chairperson
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jolene Pieters
Jolene Pieters
Hardin County Auditor



1/10/2022 10:58:25 AM Page 1 of 2

Vendor Publication Report
Hardin County Payment Date Range: 01/12/2022 - 01/12/2022

Vendor Name Total PaymentsVendor Number
Ackley Housing Inc, Landlord 400.00100523
Airgas North Central 439.27633V
Alliant Energy 1,730.604253V
Angela De La Riva 249.50100411
Bauer Built Tire, Inc 1,989.741609V
Campbell Supply Co 228.47620V
Cedar Ridge 200.00100396
Central Iowa Detention Center 628.721103V
Cintas-Chicago 216.232475V
City of Alden 31.65512V
City of Eldora 2,910.69510V
City of Radcliffe 65.80517V
Cooley Pumping LLC 160.0061963V
Corporate Translation Services Inc dba Language Link 2.28100375
Cristine A Birks 596.462919V
Crosser Electric Inc. 619.545060V
Culligan - IA Falls 111.10100455
Culligan-Minneapolis 398.70857V
Diamond Mowers Inc 547.592693V
Donylle C Houston 30.00605E
Eichmeier Motor Co 57.95100382
Eldora Hardware 80.082647V
Fareway Stores-Ia. Falls 189.63717V
Gehrke Inc. 1,383.686131V
General Basic Fund 90.451270V
Guardian RFID 1,410.0063533V
Hardin Co Tire & Service 785.83100446
Hardin Co Tire & Service Inc 155.854240V
Hardin County Historical Library 40.00100893
Hardin County Office Supplies 55.42119V
Hardin County Solid Waste & Recycling 15.004322V
Heart of Iowa 2,123.476335V
Henderson Products Inc 1,205.672780V
Interstate Batteries 745.55880V
Iowa Regional Utilities Assoc.-Newton 96.1162036V
ISAA 325.004674V
ISAC 590.00920V
ISSDA 125.0062103V
James or Mary Meyer 200.00100806
Jasper Construction Services, Inc. 99,172.80100944
Jerico Services Inc 14,700.005981V
Kathy Houck 100.00100625
Ken's Repair 37.264583V
Linn Adams 40.009245E
Marla Kay Williams 298.002268V
Mary J Swartz 185.92302E
Matthew D. Ireland 660.00100804
McDowell & Sons Contractors, Inc. 750.0062529V
Mend Correctional Care PLLC 10,838.392724V
Mid-America Publishing Corp 456.7262056V
Mindy Kreimeyer 108.00100951
NAPA Auto Parts 25.984290V
Napa Auto Parts Ackley 84.68869V
NAPA Auto Parts Eldora 1,811.90617V
New Providence Hardware 4.99640V



Vendor Publication Report Payment Date Range: 01/12/2022 - 01/12/2022

1/10/2022 10:58:25 AM Page 2 of 2

Vendor Name Total PaymentsVendor Number
Orkin, 538-Waterloo 60.00100827
R.D.'s Plumbing Inc 319.7763077V
Rural Iowa Waste Management 57.7561544V
Sadler Power Train Inc 201.635067V
Storey Kenworthy 229.1061798V
Summit Food Service LLC 4,558.032332V
Theisens 432.266220V
Union Auto Inc. 887.441523V
Veridian Credit Union 949.9463561V
Verizon Connect 469.70100836
Verizon Wireless 7.0263648V
VISA 4,785.13150V
Walmart Community/Capital One 233.9262446V
Wet Pet Outlet 46.0062545V
William Stonebraker 157.50100994
Z & Z Glass 120.0062420V

164,020.86Grand Total:



Hardin County Ordinance #____ 

An ordinance relating to the mowing of ditched on Hardin County rights-of-way. 

Section 1.  Purpose.  To provide enforcement of and consequences for mowing of ditches in violation of 

Iowa Code section 314.17 (2021), as it relates to Hardin County rights-of-way.  

Section 2.  Prohibited Activities.   

a. Mowing roadside vegetation on the Hardin County rights-of-way or medians on any county highway 

or secondary road without an annual permit issued by the Hardin County Engineer is prohibited.  A 

valid permit is one that is issued by the Hardin County Engineer upon application and payment of a 

permit fee.  The application form, permit form and any fee shall be established by resolution of the 

Board of Supervisors.   

b. Mowing roadside vegetation on the Hardin County rights-of-way or medians on any county highway 

or secondary road prior to July 15 in any year is prohibited, except as follows:  

1. Within two hundred yards of an inhabited dwelling.  

2. On rights-of-way within one mile of the corporate limits of a city.  

3. To promote native species of vegetation or other long-lived and adaptable vegetation.  

4. To establish control of damaging insect populations, noxious weeds, and invasive plant species.  

5. For visibility and safety reasons.  

6. Within rest areas, weigh stations, and wayside parks.  

7. Within fifty feet of a drainage tile or tile intake.  

8. For access to a mailbox or for other accessibility purposes.  

9. On rights-of-way adjacent to agricultural demonstration or research plots. 

  c. Exception to Prohibition.  For safety, subsections (a) and (b) in this section do not apply to the first six 
 
      (feet) into the ditch from either edge of the traveled portion of rights-of-way. 
     
Section 3.  Penalty    Any violation of section 2 shall be a county infraction which is punishable by a civil 

penalty of not more than $100.00 for each violation, or if the infraction is a repeat offense, a civil 

penalty not exceeding $200.00 for each repeat offense. For purposes of the civil penalty, “each 

violation” shall mean each ¼ mile of ditch mowed, or fraction thereof; “repeat offense” means a notice 

of violation sent to the same violator for a subsequent infraction.       

Section 4.  Enforcement   



a. Enforcement of this ordinance shall be initiated only upon a written complaint, sworn under oath, 
on a complaint form developed by the Hardin County Engineer. The complainant shall provide 
details on the form such as, but not limited to: contact information of the reporting party, date and 
specific location of the violation, the name of the person violating the ordinance, the name of the 
landowner, and description of the area mowed. A party making a written complaint must be the 
landowner, adjacent landowner, tenant, or a party with a vested contractual interest in the 
commodity or right-of-way.   

b. If, in the opinion of the Hardin County Engineer, or designee, it is determined that the complainant 

has standing and the complaint is valid and that provided information establishes that a violation 

has occurred, notice of the violation, including a copy of the complaint, shall be given to the 

violating party and landowner, tenant or other interested party.  The notice shall demand the 

violator cease and desist and pay the civil infraction within 30 days of the date of the notice or it will 

be assessed to the property taxes of the property adjacent to the right-of-way, with additional fees 

and interest.  This notice shall be given by ordinary mail within 7 business days of receiving a valid 

complaint.  

c. The violator shall have the right to demand a hearing on the complaint. Demand for hearing shall be 

made in writing and received by the Hardin County Auditor within 14 days from the date of the 

notice of violation. Said hearing shall be before the Board of Supervisors and shall be scheduled at 

the convenience of the Board, but no later than 60 days after the demand is received.  Failure to 

timely demand hearing shall be deemed as waiver and admission of violation. The Board of 

Supervisors shall notify the violator in writing of its decision within 10 days of the hearing by mailing 

the decision to the violator.   Failure to pay within 30 days of the date of decision any amount due 

may be assessed as property taxes on the property adjacent to the rights-of-way. 

d. The enforcement provided herein is not an exclusive remedy, and all other civil and criminal 

remedies, public and private remain inviolate. 

Section 5.  Repeal.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

are hereby repealed. 

Section 6.  Severability Clause.  Any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid 

or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any 

section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption and publication as provided 

by law. 

 

 







HARDIN COUNTY
ORDINANCE NO. 30

AMENDED
REDISTRICTING AND REPRECINCTING ORDINANCE

BE IT ENACTED by the Board of Supervisors of Hardin County, Iowa:

SECTION 1. Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to amend Ordinance No. 30 establishing
voting precincts as the result of the population changes reflected by the 2020 federal decennial
census, in accordance with Iowa Code Sections 49.3, 49.4 and 49.7.

SECTION 2. Legal Description of Precincts:

Alden/Buckeye Alden Township, Buckeye Township, City of Alden, City of Buckeye

Eldora/Pleasant/ Eldora Township, Pleasant Township, Providence Township,
Providence/Union Union Township, City of New Providence, City of Union,

City of Whitten

Concord/Sherman/ Concord Township, Sherman Township, Grant Township, Tipton
Grant/Tipton Township, City of Radcliffe, City of Hubbard

Eldora City City of Eldora

Etna/Clay Etna Township, Clay Township, the portion of the City of Ackley
lying within Hardin County, City of Steamboat Rock

Hardin/Ellis/Jackson Hardin Township, Ellis Township, Jackson Township, City of Owasa

Iowa Falls #1 Precinct number one shall comprise the area within the City limits
lying east and north of the division line described as follows:
Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Cadet Road and 
Taylor Avenue at the north corporation line, thence south along the 
centerline of Taylor Avenue to the intersection of said centerline with 



the centerline of Woodland Avenue, thence east along the centerline 
of Woodland Avenue to the intersection of said centerline with the 
centerline of River Street, thence south along the centerline of River 
Street to the intersection of said centerline with the centerline of the 
Iowa River, thence easterly and southerly along the centerline of the 
Iowa River to the eastern City limits.

Iowa Falls #2 Precinct number two shall comprise the area within the City limits
lying west and south of the division line described above.

SECTION 3. Statement of population of each Precinct:

Alden/Buckeye 1320
Eldora/Pleasant/Providence/Union 1680
Concord/Sherman/Grant/Tipton 2448
Eldora City 2663
Etna/Clay 2289
Hardin/Ellis/Jackson 1372
Iowa Falls #1 2227
Iowa Falls #2 2879

SECTION 4. Repealer.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. Severability Clause.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance
as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective for all elections after January
15, 2022, final passage and publication as provided by law.

Passed and approved this ____ day of January, 2022.

HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

______________________________
BJ Hoffman, Chair

______________________________
Lance Granzow, Member

______________________________
Renee McClellan, Member



ATTEST:

______________________________
Jolene Pieters
Hardin County Auditor
































